
	TRANSPARENCY

	Transparency is a General Principle in the Osaka Action Agenda.  To build on this, APEC Leaders agreed in the 2001 Shanghai Accord to develop transparency standards and report progress in the Individual Action Plan.  Since 2002, Leaders agreed in the Leaders’ Statement to Implement APEC Transparency Standards to General Transparency Standards, including on monetary, financial and fiscal policies and dissemination of macroeconomic policy data, and to area-Specific Transparency Standards on tariffs, non-tariff measures, services, investment, standards and conformance, customs procedures, intellectual property rights, competition policy, deregulation/regulatory review, mobility of business people and government procurement.  Leaders agreed to review the Transparency Standards periodically and, where appropriate, review, revise and expand them further


	
	Economies’ Current Approach to Transparency
	Future Improvements Planned

	Economies’ General Framework

for Ensuring Transparency in 

areas covered by Leaders’ 

General Transparency Standards*

	Access to Information:
 

The Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. 552) ("FOIA") generally provides that any person has a right, enforceable in court, to obtain access to federal agency records. While there are a number of exemptions to disclosure, generally discretionary and not mandatory, dissatisfied record requesters are given relatively speedy remedy in the United States district courts. Judges determine de novo the propriety of agency withholdings and agencies bear the burden of proof that the withholding is justified. FOIA is administered through a decentralized system, so that each federal agency is responsible for implementing the Act’s requirements. Requests for records under the Act may consist of a simple letter from the requestor, who is not required to state his or her reasons for making the request.

 

In addition, federal agencies make extensive use of websites on the Internet to provide substantive information, to inform the public about official activities and how to obtain additional documents. As an example, there were over a million visits to the Department of State website within the United States in the month of July 2002. Many government institutions are also required to publicly release numerous government reports and announcements regarding the inner workings of government. A few examples include the daily Congressional Record transcripts of all Congressional proceedings and introduced bills, the Commerce Business Daily announcements of government procurement opportunities, and semi-annual reports describing the work of each Inspector General.

Transparency and Tariffs

The United States is committed to making its tariff regime as transparent as possible.  The U.S. tariff regime is published on the internet in several formats for ease of use and updated throughout the year as legislation or Presidential Proclamations modify the tariff schedule. The United States has prepared extensive electronic materials for the Consolidated Tariff System now under development by the Secretariat of the World Trade Organization (WTO). We appreciate that these materials are being made available to WTO members both by CD and online. Products now available include the following:

· Full legal text of the  U.S. tariff schedule at http://www.usitc.gov/tata/hts/
· Full legal text  of U.S. tariff schedule for viewing online by chapter at http://www.usitc.gov/tata/hts/bychapter/index.htm
· A tariff base with brief (rather than full-legal) product descriptions for quick lookup of tariff rates, preferential rate, final bound rates, and binding status at http://dataweb.usitc.gov/scripts/tariff.asp 
· A trade database for retrieving import and export data by HTS items and product groups at http://dataweb.usitc.gov/
Agriculture
The United States has a transparent and open standards and regulatory system.  Information on standards and technical regulations for agricultural and food products is publicly available, and participation in standards development bodies is open to both U.S. and non-residents.  Proposed standards and technical regulations are published in advance and an opportunity for comment from interested parties is provided.  Comments received are taken into consideration when developing the final standard and technical regulation.  The United States has established inquiry points, as required under the WTO Agreement on Technical Barriers to Trade and the Agreement on the Application of Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures.  

The Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS) continues to ensure that its rules reflect its obligations under the WTO-SPS Agreement, including transparency obligations.  APHIS regulations affecting trade are notified to the WTO through the USDA notification authority (the Foreign Agricultural Service).  The US notice, comment and rulemaking process, while lengthy, by its very nature enhances transparency.  APHIS regularly reviews its regulations and employs the principles of scientific risk analysis to enhance trade opportunities.

In 1997, APHIS updated its import regulations to comply with the principles of transparency and equivalency contained in the World Trade Organization (WTO) agreement.  APHIS has also revised its regulations to enhance trade opportunities by allowing additional articles to be imported into the United States.  Particular examples from1997 include final rules that allow importation of Haas avocados from Michoacan, Mexico; and pork from Sonora, Mexico. APHIS is seeking to allow fragrant pears from China and mango from the Philippines.  For more specific information on regulations implemented by APHIS go to http://www.aphis.usda.gov./
Dispute Mediation
The United States continues to pursue an approach to dispute mediation that is consistent with the Osaka Action Agenda, as well as its rights and obligations under the WTO, NAFTA and our other free trade agreements.   The United States seeks the adoption of procedures to resolve disputes in an effective, timely, transparent, equitable and reasoned manner, requiring determinations based on facts and provisions of the relevant agreement with the goal of increasing compliance with such agreements.

The U.S. system for enacting laws and promulgating regulations and administrative procedures is highly transparent.  Access to the process of formulating and enforcing laws is open and provided in a wide range of media and fora.  All laws and regulations are published and made available to the public.  A process of public notice and comment is provided for all major regulations and rules.  Federal agencies must provide additional access to information pursuant to the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act. The Federal Advisory Committee Act also provides for increased transparency of federal government proceedings.   The provisions of both Acts are widely replicated at state and local levels.

The United States independence review system is very transparent at all levels.  Administrative and judicial determinations made in accordance with U.S. laws, regulations and other rules are virtually always subject to appeal and independent review in a variety of manners and levels.    Such appeal and review procedures are wide ranging, complex, rigorous and fair.

See update of dispute settlement activities at http://www.ustr.gov  The United States supports making the WTO dispute settlement process more transparent and giving parties to a WTO dispute more control of the process and greater flexibility to settle their disputes.  Information on U.S. proposals to make the WTO dispute settlement process more transparent and give parties greater flexibility and control can be found at the USTR website.  

Transparency and Customs

Customs and Border Protection regulations are published in the Code of Federal Regulations and are publicly available. Changes or additions to those regulations and established Customs practices are published in the Federal Register and the Customs Bulletin. The Federal Register is available on the Internet at www.access.gpo.gov. Customs and Border Protection regulations are posted on the Customs and Border Protection website. Changes and additions are posted on a regular basis. Customs and Border Protection makes available a large variety of booklets, leaflets, pamphlets, and brochures to assist the trade community. In addition, major rulings and decisions published in the Customs Bulletin and the Federal Register. This information is also available on the Customs and Border Protection website. Customs and Border Protection welcomes public comments and posts on its website how to submit comments. Customs and Border Protection maintains a website, www.cbp.gov that is updated daily.

Transparency and the Judicial Process

The United States will continue to ensure the transparency of federal competition laws and enforcement policies through publication of antitrust laws, enforcement policy guidelines of the federal enforcement agencies, judicial opinions related to antitrust matters, advisory opinions or business review letters, annual reports of the antitrust agencies, and public statements concerning enforcement policy by senior policy officials.  Information regarding enforcement actions taken by the agencies, rationales for non-enforcement in certain matters, and appellate judicial opinions are already available on the Internet.

 

The United States will continue its strong commitment to effective enforcement of the antitrust laws and to pro-competitive regulatory reform.  The federal enforcement agencies do not discriminate in the enforcement of the antitrust laws on the basis of nationality of the parties.  Foreign firms and individuals have access to the U.S. enforcement agencies to present evidence of alleged anti-competitive conduct in violation of the antitrust laws and to the courts to seek redress for alleged injuries there from.

Continuing the agencies’ ongoing efforts to increase the transparency of their decision making processes, the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) and the Federal Trade Commission (FTC), in March 2006, jointly released a Commentary on the Horizontal Merger Guidelines.  This commentary explains how DOJ and FTC have applied various principles -- set out in the agencies’ Horizontal Merger Guidelines (issued in 1992 and revised in 1997) -- in the context of actual merger investigations.  A major theme that the commentary highlights is the “integrated approach to merger review” that the agencies apply in each case – that is, the agencies do not apply the guidelines as a linear, step-by-step progression that invariably follows the exact order in which the various analytical elements appear in the guidelines.

 

In June 2006, the DOJ and FTC implemented an electronic filing system that allows merging parties to submit via the Internet pre-merger notification filings required by the Hart-Scott-Rodino Pre-merger Notification Act.  Electronic filing eliminates the time and expense entailed in duplicating and delivering documents.

Transparency and Immigration
To further transparency, accessibility, and openness, information concerning U.S. immigration, laws and policies can be found on two websites: www.uscis.gov and www.state.gov. The United States promptly publishes or otherwise makes available through readily accessible, widely available media information on its “immigration measures”.  Various websites include: www.uscis.gov, www.cbp.gov, www.state.gov, www.uscis.gov and www.unitedstatesvisas.gov. Information can be obtained from the various U.S. Embassies and Consulates around the world. Information can also be located on the BMG website through the APEC Travel Handbook.

The Federal Register is a centralized means of publishing important government documents such as regulations, presidential documents and notices.  Federal Register Publications contain proposed, interim and final rules, as well as notices.  Most rules are published first as proposals and the public is invited to comment on them before they become final and have the force of law.  Interim and final rules have the force of law.  These materials provide valuable insight and commentary on the regulations contained in Title 8 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

The general provisions of laws enacted by Congress are interpreted and implemented by regulations issued by various agencies. These regulations apply the law to daily situations.  After regulations are published in the Federal Register, they are collected and published in the Code of Federal Regulations, commonly referred to as the CFR. The CFR is arranged by subject title and generally parallels the structure of the United States Code. Thus, Title 8 of the CFR deals with "Aliens and Nationality", as does Title 8 of the United States Code.

CBP officers are trained in decision-making procedures and have access to current written guidelines and instructions relating to interpretation of regulations and laws.  

The Department of State offices strive for reasonable processing times for decision-making in an effort to avoid unnecessary delay or uncertainty on the part of business travelers but the U.S. reserves the right for the application process to take longer than average for security purposes.

The United States provides procedures that are consistent and easily accessible for review and appeal of immigration decisions.  Should a petition or application be denied or revoked by the USCIS, in most cases an individual may appeal that decision to a higher authority (the Administrative Appeals Unit-AAU).  Information about the appeal process can be found on the USCIS website (www.uscis.gov). 

Transparency and Government Procurement
The primary goal of U.S. procurement policy is to obtain the most advantageous goods and services for the government while promoting full and open competition through a fair and transparent process.  CICA and the FAR System codify uniform policies and procedures for acquisition by almost all U.S. executive agencies.  The FAR System consists of the FAR and agency acquisition regulations that implement or supplement the FAR.  The FAR limits agency acquisition regulations to those necessary to implement FAR policies and procedures within an agency, and provides for coordination, simplicity, and uniformity in the USG acquisition process.  The emphasis is on ensuring predictability and transparency throughout the process. The following procurement procedures are used:  Simplified acquisition procedures, negotiated procurement procedures, and sealed bid procedures.  Simplified acquisition procedures can be used whenever the value of the items is expected to be under $100,000.   Sealed bids are used when the award will be made on the basis of price.  A contract awarded using other than sealed bidding procedures is a negotiated contract and is generally used when the evaluation includes factors other than cost and discussions are necessary to understand offerors’ proposals, while maintaining a process designed to foster an impartial and comprehensive evaluation of offerors' proposals leading to selection of the proposal representing the best value to the government.  The CICA requires that criteria for award of a contract be set out in the solicitation.  When an agency changes the criteria, it must advise the offerors.  It must also use the same bid deadlines for all offerors.  Where the procurement is conducted by negotiation, an unsuccessful offerors may request, in writing, debriefings from the contracting officer.  Where sealed bidding is used, the unsuccessful offeror will be notified in writing of the number of bidders, the number of proposals and the total contract price of the items in the award.

There are two new web-based tools to enhance the transparency of government procurement information in the United States.  The “Federal Procurement Data System” and “Acquisition Central” are discussed below.

The Federal Procurement Data System (FPDS) provides a comprehensive mechanism for assembling, organizing, and presenting contract placement data for the Federal Government. Federal agencies will now report data directly to the Federal Procurement Data System—Next Generation (FPDS-NG), which collects, processes, and disseminates official statistical data on Federal contracting. The data provide:

· A basis for recurring and special reports to the President, the Congress, the Government Accountability Office, Federal executive agencies, and the general public;

· A means of measuring and assessing the impact of Federal contracting on the Nation’s economy and the extent to which small, veteran-owned small, service-disabled veteran-owned small, HUBZone small, small disadvantaged, and women-owned small business concerns are sharing in Federal contracts; and

· Information for other policy and management control purposes, and for public access. 

The FPDS website, https://www.fpds.gov, provides instructions for submitting data. It also provides a complete list of departments, agencies, and other entities that submit data to the FPDS, as well as technical and end-user guidance, and a computer-based tutorial. “Acquisition Central” is a new web site for the federal acquisition community and the government's business partners to access shared systems and acquisition tools.  It is accessible at http://acquisition.gov/. Acquisition Central is hosted by IAE (Integrated Acquisition Environment), the E-Gov Initiative that is streamlining the federal acquisition process. It provides one website for all things acquisition.  From this website, users can learn about regulations, systems, resources, opportunities, and training. It is an easily navigable resource to share the efforts of IAE as it works to achieve its vision of more efficient and transparent practices through better use of information, people, processes and technology. With regard to Bid Protest Information, the Government Accountability Office’s 2006 edition of its publication “Bid Protests at GAO: A Descriptive Guide”, is accessible at http://www.gao.gov/decisions/bidpro/bid/d06797sp.pdf.

As a Party to the GPA, NAFTA, and FTAs, the United States has binding international commitments to provide transparent, non-discriminatory procurement opportunities to suppliers of many of its major trading partners.  

 

Enquiry point:   Under the GPA, the U.S. Trade Representative is the U.S. enquiry point for other GPA signatories to obtain information relating to procurement rules related to U.S. commitments under the WTO GPA. 

 

Laws and Regulations:  U.S. laws, regulations, judicial decisions, administrative rulings, policies, procedures, and practices are transparent and readily accessible.  U.S. laws related to procurement listed in Attachment 1 of the United States APEC Government Procurement Survey can be found in the United States Code (U.S. Code), which is available for purchase and in libraries around the country, and can be searched or downloaded over the Internet at no cost.  The following site allows searches of the U.S. Code:  http://www.gpoaccess.gov/uscode/index.html.  Agency-specific regulations can be found at: http://www.regulations.gov/fdmspublic/component/main.  U.S. Code Titles 10 (defense agencies), 31(protest procedures), 40 (civilian agencies), and 41 (government-wide) contain most of the laws related to U.S. federal procurement.  The Competition in Contracting Act of  1984(CICA), codified in U.S. Code Titles 10, 31, and 41, requires all acquisitions to be made using full and open competition, which is the fundamental principle of the U.S. procurement system.  The Federal Acquisition Regulatory System (FAR) codifies and publishes uniform policies and procedures for acquisition with very few exceptions by most federal government agencies.  The FAR System consists of the FAR itself, which is the primary legal document, and agency-specific acquisition regulations that implement or supplement it. The FAR and other information on the Federal procurement system is available on the internet http://acquisition.gov/far/index.html.  Interested parties can subscribe to an e-mail based system to receive notifications of proposed revisions to the FAR, public meetings, the release of Federal Acquisition Circulars (FACs), as well as other FAR-related issues of interest.  Anyone can subscribe to the "FAR News" system free of charge at:  http://acquisition.gov/far/mailframe.html. 

 

States and municipalities have independent procurement authority and conduct their procurement on the basis of their own laws and regulations.  They generally follow procedural safeguards similar to those mandated by CICA and the FAR to ensure transparent and open procurement.  Information about state procurement regulations, along with contact information for state procurement officials, can be obtained from publications produced by the National Association of State Procurement Officials, as well as on its internet site: http://www.naspo.org.

 

Bid Protests:  Unsuccessful bidders may submit protests of federal agencies' procurement actions to the Government Accountability Office (GAO). The GAO issues decisions on the bid protests, which can be accessed on the internet at:  http://www.gao.gov/.

 

Provision of Government Contract Information: CICA and the FAR require that procurement opportunities over $25,000, with few exceptions, be published in the FedBizOpps (http://www.fedbizopps.gov/).  FedBizOpps contains links to specific tender documentation, including technical specifications, which can be downloaded directly from the Internet.  CICA and the FAR require certain information to be included in the synopses.  The description of the supplies or services must include the following information:  quantity; size, dimensions, or other form, fit or functional description; destination information; delivery schedule; qualification requirements; duration of the contract period.  For contracts over $25,000, contracting offices must include a description of the procedures to be used in awarding the contract.  The CICA and FAR require that award of contract be made by written notice, which may include electronic communications.  Unsuccessful offerors must be notified of the award decision.
Standards and Conformance
The United States has a transparent and open standards and regulatory system.  Information on standards and technical regulations is publicly available, and participation in standards development bodies is open to both U.S. and non-residents.  Proposed standards and technical regulations are published in advance and an opportunity for comment from interested parties -- whether domestic or foreign -- is provided.  Comments received are taken into consideration when developing the final standard and technical regulation.  These requirements are codified domestically in the Administrative Procedures Act (APA) which sets forth the general procedures for rule-making to be followed by agencies of the United States Government (5 U.S.C. section 551 et seq.).  In addition, Executive Order 12866, “Regulatory Planning and Review,” contains the Administration’s statement of regulatory policy, including rigorous analysis requirements (e.g., cost-benefit analysis; impact on small business; environmental impact) which must be conducted before a final regulation is issued. The United States has established inquiry points, as required under the WTO Agreement on Technical Barriers to Trade (TBT) and the Agreement on the Application of Sanitary and Phytosanitary (SPS) Measures.  The United States has submitted its statement on implementation under the WTO TBT Agreement (G/TBT/2/Add. 2 available on http://www.wto.org/).  The U.S. inquiry points have developed and maintain directories with detailed information on U.S. standards organizations; federal, state and private sector laboratory accreditation organizations; and federal and private sector certification programs.  The United States publishes annual reports on the activities of our inquiry points.  In addition, most U.S. federal agencies have established and are updating and expanding information on home pages on the Internet to facilitate the distribution of information on their activities and regulatory requirements.

The United States has a transparent and open standards and regulatory system.  Information on standards and technical regulations is publicly available, and participation in standards development bodies is open to both U.S. and non-residents.  Proposed standards and technical regulations are published in advance and an opportunity for comment from all interested parties – whether domestic or foreign – is provided.  The United States has established inquiry points, as required under the WTO Agreement on Technical Barriers to Trade and the Agreement on the Application of Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures.  The U.S. publishes annual reports on inquiry point activities.  In addition, most U.S. federal agencies have established home pages on the Internet to facilitate the distribution of information on their activities and regulatory requirements.

Information on the U.S. standards and conformity assessment system was available, largely in hard copy, prior to 1996. Since 1996, the list of APEC contact points on standards and conformance information was compiled and made available on the Internet. In addition, many US federal agencies now maintain websites to distribute information on their activities and regulatory requirements. 

The Process of Public Policy Making and Decision-Making:  
 

The process of public policy making and decision-making occurs not just in the executive branch, where information about proposed policies and matters on which agencies are contemplating decisions alerts the public to where it should make its positions known, but also in the legislative branch where lobbying and access to the legislative process allow civil society to participate in policy making and decision making, both generally and in particular on anti-corruption legislation. Another mechanism that provides for direct civil society participation in anticorruption matters is the “qui tam” action (31 USC 3730), which permits a private citizen to file a complaint under the False Claims Act, alleging corruption to obtain a public contract. If successful, the citizen may recover a percentage of the proceeds of the settlement or judgment. The filing of amicus briefs in judicial proceedings is another mechanism for public participation, as are public appearances before Congress in connection with hearings and markups. Another anticorruption mechanism that provides for public participation is the procedures for disappointed bidders to challenge Federal contract awards (Part 33 of the Federal Acquisition Regulations, 48 Code of Federal Regulations 1). 


	The United States will continue to make its online products as current and as user-friendly as possible. Each year, the United States has fully satisfied GATT/WTO notification requirements on trade and tariff data by making a full submission to the GATT/WTO Integrated Database. The United States will continue to examine ways to increase transparency and access to information on procurements. In particular, advances in information technology hold promise for transmitting information on procurement opportunities around the globe instantaneously. The United States will continue to seek to enhance the databases available through the APEC Government Procurement Homepage.

	Transparency in monetary, financial and fiscal policies and dissemination of macroeconomic policy data**

	An external assessment of the Fiscal Transparency Module was done by the IMF in July 2003 and the IMF judged that the United States is fully compliant with most elements of the Fund's Code of Good Practices on Fiscal Transparency, and sets best practice standards in many areas.   A series of U.S. self-assessments relating to compliance with other international standards, including the Code of Good Practices on Transparency in Monetary and Financial Policies and Code of Good Practices on Fiscal Transparency has been made available on the Treasury website at http://www.treas.gov/offices/international-affairs/standards  
Although the U.S. self-assessments are not meant to be a substitute for external assessments under the IMF and World Bank ROSC program, the U.S. is making available the self-assessments, which can be a valuable input into the external assessment process, in order to help promote greater awareness of U.S. practices. 

The United States is committed to making its tariff regime as transparent as possible.  The U.S. tariff regime is published on the internet in several formats for ease of use and updated throughout the year as legislation or Presidential Proclamations modify the tariff schedule.  Products now available include the following:

· Full legal text of the  U.S. tariff schedule at http://www.usitc.gov/tata/hts/
· Full legal text  of U.S. tariff schedule for viewing online by chapter at http://www.usitc.gov/tata/hts/bychapter/index.htm
· A tariff database with brief (rather than full-legal) product descriptions for quick lookup of tariff rates, preferential rate, final bound rates, and binding status at http://dataweb.usitc.gov/scripts/tariff.asp
· A trade database for retrieving import and export data by  HTS items and product groups at http://dataweb.usitc.gov/
	Each year, the United States has fully satisfied GATT/WTO notification requirements on trade and tariff data by making a full submission to the GATT/WTO Integrated Database. Additionally, during this past year, the United States has submitted extensive materials to the WTO for preparation of the Consolidated Tariff Schedules (CTS) by the Secretariat. The United States will continue to make its tariff regime as transparent as possible.  



	
	
	


Appendix – APEC Leaders Transparency Standards, paragraphs 1 through 6 and 9 through 11.

General Principles 

1. (a) Each Economy will ensure that its laws, regulations, and progressively, procedures and administrative rulings of general application respecting matters in Section C of Part One of the Osaka Action Agenda are promptly published or otherwise made available, for example via the Internet, in such a manner as to enable interested persons and other Economies to become acquainted with them.  (b) Each Economy will have or designate an official journal or journals and publish any measures referred to in paragraph 1 in such journals.  Each Economy will publish such journals on a regular basis and make copies of them readily available to the public. (c) An Economy may comply with subparagraph (b) by publication on the Internet. (d) Each Economy will promote observance of the provisions of this paragraph by the regional and local governments and authorities within its customs territory.

2. When possible, each Economy will: (a) publish in advance any measure referred to in paragraph 1 that it proposes to adopt; and (b) provide where applicable interested persons a reasonable opportunity to comment on such proposed measures.

3. Upon request from an interested person or another Economy, an Economy will endeavor to promptly provide information and respond to questions pertaining to any actual or proposed measure referred to in paragraph 1.

4. Each Economy will ensure in its administrative proceedings applying any measure referred to in paragraph 1 that: (a) wherever possible, persons of another Economy that are directly affected by a proceeding are provided reasonable notice, in accordance with domestic procedures, when a proceeding is initiated, including a description of the nature of the proceeding, a statement of the legal authority under which the proceeding is initiated and a general description of any issues in controversy; (b) such persons are afforded a reasonable opportunity to present facts and arguments in support of their positions prior to any final administrative action, when time, the nature of the proceeding and the public interest permit; and (c) its procedures are in accordance with domestic law.

5. Where warranted, each Economy will ensure that appropriate domestic procedures are in place to enable prompt review and correction of final administrative actions, other than those taken for sensitive prudential reasons, regarding matters covered by these Standards, that: (a) provide for tribunals or panels that are impartial and independent of any office or authority entrusted with administrative enforcement and have no substantial interest in the outcome of the matter; (b) provide parties to any proceeding with a reasonable opportunity  to present their respective positions; (c) provide parties to any proceeding with a decision based on the evidence and submissions of record or, where required by domestic law, the record compiled by the administrative authority; and (d) ensure, subject to appeal or further review under domestic law, that such decisions are implemented by, and govern the practice of, the offices or authorities regarding the administrative action at issue.

6. For purposes of these Standards, administrative ruling of general application means an administrative ruling or interpretation that applies to all persons and fact situations that fall generally within its ambit and that establishes a norm of conduct but does not include: (a) a determination or ruling made in an administrative or quasi-judicial proceeding that applies to a particular person, good or service of another Economy in a specific case; or (b) a ruling that adjudicates with respect to a particular act or practice.

Transparency in Monetary, Financial and Fiscal Policies and the Dissemination of Macroeconomic Policy Data
9. Prior to our agreement in the Shanghai Accord to implement APEC transparency principles, we agreed in Brunei Darussalam in 2000 to support the key standards identified by the Financial Stability Forum.  Three of these key standards focus on transparency: (a) Code of Good Practices on Transparency in Monetary and Financial Policies: Declaration of Principles; (b) Code of Good Practices on Fiscal Transparency; and (c) General and Special Data Dissemination Standards.

10. Following APEC Finance Ministers' decision to support the assessment of Economies' implementation of these transparency codes through the IMF‑led Reports on the Observance of Standards and Codes (ROSCs), Economies are encouraged to  participate fully in the ROSC  program.  As voluntary disclosure of ROSC modules promotes transparency, Economies should, where practicable, disclose the results of these assessments.

11. The provisions of this Statement will not require any Economy to disclose confidential information where such disclosure would impede law enforcement, the enactment of laws, or otherwise be contrary to the public interest or would prejudice the legitimate commercial interests of particular persons or enterprises.
* Economies should report against the actual language in the APEC Leaders’ General Transparency Standards, paragraphs 1 through 6 and 11, which can be found in the Appendix attached at the end of this document.





** Economies should report against the actual language in the APEC Leaders’ Transparency Standards on Transparency in Monetary, Financial and Fiscal Policies and the Dissemination of Macroeconomic Policy Data, paragraphs 9 and 10, which can be found in the �HYPERLINK  \l "Appendix"��Appendix� attached at the end of this document.











